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BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION OOSSCESSIOK 
OF THE STATE OP NEW MEXICO 

Santa Fe, New Mexico. 

Apri l 15, 1952. 

IN THE MATTER OF; 

The application of the Amerada 
Petroleum Corporation for an 
order establishing proration 
units and uniform spacing of CASE No.: 2^9 & 
wells for the Bagley-Siluro 315 
Devonian Pool, Lea County, 
New Mexico. 

IU . KELLOUGH: My name i s Booth Kellough, lawyer for the 

Amerada Petroleum Corporation at Tulsa. We have three 80-acre 

spacing cases set t h i s morning. The Bagley, the Knowles and 

the Hightower. Each of these cases, as you know, has rather a 

long history. In order to expedite the matter and i n order to 

keep the record straight i n each one of these cases we have 

prepared a written statement which cbntains the statement of the 

background of the particular case together with our version of 

the issues which are now probably before the Commission and also 

a summary of the testimony that the witnesses w i l l present. 
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I I f the Commission would l i k e to follow t h i s statement as 

i we present our case, I think i t w i l l help considerably i n keep-

! ing each one separate and eliminating confusion and saving time, 

j We have also prepared a l l our exhibits and wo have them i n a 

; folder to be kept with each one of these cases so they may be 

j kept separate. 

The Case 249 and the Case also No. 315 which i s fourth on 

the docket are the Bagley case. 

In August, 1949, Amerada f i l e d i t s application to establish 

80-acre proration units and uniform spacing of wells for the 

Bagley-Siluro-Devonian pool i n Lea County, Sew Mexico. (Case 

No. 191) 

The discovery well, known as State OTA #1 (located i n N*r/4 

; SE/4 Sec. 2-12S-33E) had been completed i n the Devonian formation 

at a depth of 10,770 to 11,000. 

Caudle #1 (SE/4 NE/4 Sec. 10-12S-33&) had been d r i l l e d as 

'. a dry hole i n the Devonian. Amerada, Mid-Continent Petroleum 

Corporation and Texas Pacific Coal and Oil Company were each then 

; d r i l l i n g a well i n the area asked to be spaced. 

The application asked that the spacing order cover an area 

I comprising 3040 acres. 

| I t was requested that a l l wells be located i n the N$ and SE 

j quarter of each governmental quarter-section. 
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An exception was asked for the Kid-Continent well (Stf/4 Nlif/4 

Sec. 1-12S-33E) then d r i l l i n g . 

The case was f i r s t set on September 8, 1949 and then con­

tinued to December 20, 1949. 

1. FIRST HEAHING 

The case was f i r s t heard on December 20, 1949. Texas Pacific 

appeared to protest the application. At that time Amerada had 

three completed Devonian wells and one d r i l l i n g . Texas Pacific 

had one completed and one d r i l l i n g . There were two Devonian dry i 

holes, one of which was the Mid-Continent well. 

Evidence was presented by both sides. Amerada f i l e d a 

brief i n support of i t s application. 

On January 23, 1950, the Commission entered i t s order deny­

ing the application of Amerada on the ground that the evidence 

was insufficient to prove that one well on each 80-acre tract 

would e f f i c i e n t l y drain the recoverable o i l from the pool. 

Exhibit 1 i s a copy of t h i s Order R-2. 

2. REHEARING 

Amerada f i l e d i t s application f or rehearing together with 

another br i e f . The rehearing was denied February 6, 1950. 

Exhibit 2 i s a copy of Order R-8. 

3. APPEAL 

An appeal was taken by Amerada to the Di s t r i c t Court of Lea j 
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County, New Mexico. The case was docketed as No. 3485 and 

service was made. The attorneys for protestant, Texas Pacific 
j 

Coal and Oil Company, requested that the court hold a p r e - t r i a l 

conference for the purpose of considering the nature and scope 

j of review by the court, including the question of what evidence 

j may be presented. 

After the p r e - t r i a l conference both parties f i l e d briefs 
i 

presenting their respective views as to what evidence could be j 

presented on appeal and the j u r i s d i c t i o n of the D i s t r i c t Court. 

The D i s t r i c t Court entered an order on the p r e - t r i a l con­

ference i n which i t found that the review would be confined to j 

the existence of substantial evidence before the Commission to 

support the order. Amerada*s contention that i t was entitled to \ 

a t r i a l de novo as provided i n the statute was denied. 

On December 27, 1950, after the p r e - t r i a l conference order, . 

Amerada voluntarily dismissed i t s appeal with prejudice. 

4. TEMPORARY QRD3H 

In December, 1950, Amerada f i l e d a new application for a 

temporary order tc establish SC-acre proration unics for a period; 

of one year. The well location pattern was the same as previ­

ously requested. j 

Since the entry of the original order denying the applica-
i 
i 

t i o n , 13 additional producing Devonian wells had been d r i l l e d . 
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There had been IB wells to the Devonian formation d r i l l e d at the 

time of the second applicacion. 

The new application was based upon change of conditions and 

additional information obtained by subsequent development and 

also the c r i t i c a l shortage of tubular materials necessary for 

d r i l l i n g operations. 

The application for the temporary order was docketed No. 

249. I t was set for January 25, 1951, and continued to April 

i 24, 1951. 

Texas Pacific Coal and Oil Company concurred i n the request 

for a temporary order provided the allowable was fixed at l£ 

times the normal top unit allowable. 

On May 1, 1951, the Commission entered i t s Order R-69 

establishing 60-acre proration units for a period of one year 

from that date. Exhibit 3 i s a copy of Order R-69. 

5. EXCEPTION 

In Decarnbsr, 1950, Amerada f i l e d an application to force 

; pool two 40-acre tracts comprising an 80-acre unit. 

Howev-sr, one of tha 40-acre tracts, belonging to the U, S. 

Government, was located so x,hat an exception would be required 

i i n any event. Consequently on Juna 15, 1951, Amerada dismissed 

| the pooling application and f i l e d an application for an exception 

j t o Order R-69 so as to make NE/4 NE/4 Sec. 3-12S-33E a fractional 
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6. 

i 

! 40-acre unit. The exception was granted and Caudle |5 was d r i l l e d 
i 
i 
| on this t r a c t . 
i \ 
i j 

6. MOTION T6 SHOW CAUSa I 

; Tiie Commission on i t s cvm motion set the casa f c r hearing 

! on October 23, 1951, under Case Mo. 315, directing Amerada, 

! Texas Pacific and other interested operators to show cause why 

j temporary 80-acre spacing order R-69 should be continued. 

Exhibit 4 i s a copy of the notice. ! 
i 

The hearing on the Commission*s motion has been continued j 
to t h i s date. Technically, that motion i s now moot, since Order i 

• i 

R-69 expires by i t s own terms on May 1, 1952. ! 

7. APPLICATION FOR EXTENSION 

On March 24, 1952, Amerada f i l e d i t s application for an 

; extension of Order R-69 i n a i l of i t s particulars for an addi-

1 tional period of one year from May 1, 1952. Notice for t h i s 

application has been properly given. 

8. ISSUES miQLVED IH PRESENT HEARING 

The iscu-ss are not the same as i f th© case was being present­

ed to the Cosatissicn for ths f i r s t time. The Coznmission has 

j already found that the evidence j u s t i f i e d a temporary order for 

! one year. I f no waste i s being committed and conditions have 

not changed then the order i s j u s t i f i e d for another year. I 

Therefore the issues properly now before the Commission 
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jare as follows: 

j (1) Is any waste now being aomltted; 

j (2) Do the sane considerations impelling the granting of 

j the temporary order s t i l l apply to j u s t i f y as extension; 

(3) Are pressure maintenance operations neoessary or 

! feasible at this t l a e . 

{ I now offer into evidence Exhibit Humber 1 which is Order 

| l o , B-2, Kxhibit Uo. 2 which is Order H-i, Exhibit Mo, 3 Order 

; Ko. temporary spacing order and Exhibit Mo. 4 which Is the j 
i 

: notice of ti?.e Coiuaission, with respeet to this hearing. j 

| MR. 5PUBHX1H: Without objection they w i l l be reeeived. 

'-"R, .uiuIH: Eugene Adair representing Texas Pacific Coal 

and C i l . I n order that there be no misunderstand lag and so that I 

; i t may be expedited, may we obtain a ruling that Case 249 aad 315 

are consolidated, or that 315 is not now before the Commission, so 

that w& can meet those two notices with one series of witnesses. 

MK. SFiJRRISR: Tea, the Coamlsslon w i l l ao rule» 

mm A- rmmm, 

having been f i r s t duly sworn, te s t i f i e d as follows: 

' Sy m * XELLOPSHt 

I MR. KKLXCUCH: I wish to mmke I t plain that the evidence we 

are now presenting i s I E support of oar application for a one 
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year extension of the temporary 80-acre order which i s now i n 

effect and also i n response to the notice or motion of the 
i 

I Commission. 

Q H i l l you pleasa stats your name? 

j A John A. vender. 

Q Where do you live? 

i Midland, Texas. 

Q By whom are you employed? 

A Amerada Petroleum Corporation. 

Q what capacity? 

A D i s t r i c t Geologist. 

Q You have previously t e s t i f i e d before t h i s Commission i n 

your capacity as geologist or expert witness? 

A That i s r i g h t . 

MR. KELLGUGH: Are the qualifications acceptable? 

MR. SPURRIER: They are. 

Q I hand you, I'r. Veeder, what has been marked as Exhibit 

No. 5 and ask you to state please what that is? 

A This i s a map of the Barley-Devonian f i e l d showing with 

\ red outline the probable l i m i t s of production of the Devonian. 

Q The red line area shows the area which i s asked to be 
i 

spaced i n the application for the extension? 

A That i s r i g h t . 
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I Q And i t shows a l l the Devonian wells to date? 
i 

| A That i s r i g h t . 

IIHr KELLCUGH: We offer Exhibit No. 5 i n evidence. 

Q How many producing wells are now completed i n the 

I Bagley-Devonian reservoir? 

| A There are 19 producing o i l wells to date. Amerada has 

i completed 15, Texas Facific has completed 4. 

\ • Q Mr. Yeeder, I hand you what has been marked Exhibit No. 

\ 6 and ask you to state what that is? 

A This i s Schlumberger e l e c t r i c a l log on the Amerada No. 

5 Caudle, this i s completed to Devonian producer. 

Q I hand you Exhibit 7. 

A This i s Schlunberger e l e c t r i c a l log on Amerada Ho. 1 

; Mathers "A". 

q Exhibit 8? 

A Schlumberger on the Amerada No. 2 Mathers "A". 

US. Exhibit 9? 

k Schlumberger on the Amerada No. 1 State BTM. 

Exhibit 10? 

A Schlumberger on the Arcerada No. 1 State BTK. 

Q Exhibit 11? 

i t Schlumberger on the Amerada No, 1 State BTL. 

Exhibit 12? 
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! lumberff.er oo the fiaerada H©. 1 C. H. Turner. 
i 

m , KSLLOlftK: -ve offer Exhibits Wo. 6 to 12 inclusive Into 

evidence. 

| * rflth these exhibits there has now been presented to the 

I Commission, Schlaaberger Iocs of a l l wells which have been 

| d r i l l e d in the Bagley-!;© von ian Pool? 
] A That is r i g h t . 

• a Mr. Veeder, I hand you Kxhlbit 13 and ask you to state 

I what that exhibit is? 

• A Exhibit So. 13 is the production data sheet of a l l 

: Barley-Devonian wells. On these sheets we .have attempted to 

show, we have shown rather the well number, the top of the 

• Devonian and. the d-atmn on top of the Devonian, top of the 
: Devonian pay and also the Devonian, the datum on top of the 
; Devonian pay the Devonian cap and the Devonian completion data. 

i , On the rU»ht hand column you have the completion data 

with reference to the casing and the depth and the manner in 

which the wells mere completed? 

.% Thiit is ri£i;t, i t showa a l l that data besides the com-

; pletion information, that i s the gas o i l r a t i o , gravity 

: and also the epad-in and completion date. 

\ That i s as to a l l wells in the Bagley-Devoaian Pool, 

! iv«©rada and Texas Pacific as well? 

i 
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A That i s r i g h t . 

MR. KELLOUGH: We offer into evidence Exhibit 13. 

Q I hand you now Exhibit 14 and ask you to state what that 

is? 

A Exhibit 14 i s structure map contoured on top of the 

Devonian of the Bagley f i e l d . Contour interval 50 feet. 

Q I hand you what has been marked Exhibit No. 15 and ask 

you to state what that is? 

A Ho. 15 i s a structure map contoured on top of the 

Devonian pay. Contour intervals 50 feet. 

Q W i l l you state why you considered i t necessary and ad­

visable to prepare the two structure maps? 

A Two structure maps were drawn up and contoured because 

there i s ai presence of an impervious cap on top of the Devonian. 

The map contoured on top of the Devonian pay shows a true 

structural position of the Devonian reservoir. 

Q In other words, i n order to properly evaluate the geology 

of the Bagiey-Devonian Pool i t was necessary to prepare two 

structure maps, i s that right? 

A That i s r i g h t . 

KR. KELLOUGH; We offer i n evidence Exhibits No. 14 and 15. 

MR. SPURRIER: Without objection they w i l l be received. 

Q Mr. Veeder, considering a l l of the evidence which i s 
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available to you to date what Is your opinion as to the probable 

productive area of the Bagley-Devonian Pool which you would 

recommend to be covered by the spacing order? 

A The probable productive l i m i t s of the Bagley-Pool to date 

would bo included within the red outline. This area covers 

approximately 2,400 acres. 

0. Have you examined a l l of the samples i n the wells at the 

Bagley? ! 

A I iiav s . 

Q Have you made a visual examination of the cores which 

have been taken from the wells which have been cored by Amerada 

at Bagley? 

A That i s r i g h t . 

Q Concerning the information which you have obtained from 

your examination of samples and the examination of cores, study 
i 

of the Schlurabergsr logs which ycu offered into evidence, what 

i s your opinion as to the porosity at Bagley? 

A The Bagley-Devonian reservoir i s very good vugular and 

fractured type porosity which i s connected and continuous through-: 
i 

out tha reservoir. 

Q By that you do not mean uniform or regular? j 

A That i s r i g h t . 
i 

Q lou mean even though i t may be irregular i t nevertheless 
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i s i n your opinion one continuous portion? 

A That i s r i g h t . 

Q Mr. Veeder, from the geological information which has 

been obtained during the previous years development does that i n 

your opinion show any change i n condition from a geological 

; standpoint which should prevent the extension of the SO-acre 

spacing order for another year? 

A There has bean no change what soever. 

Q You have r?iad tha statement, tha written statement which 

has been prepared i n connection with t h i s Bagley Case, have you? 

A. That i s r i g h t . 

Q Are the statement of facts therein contained true and 

correct insofar as your knowledge and information i s concerned? 

A That i s r i g h t , 

.'•ft. KELLOUGH: That i s a l l . 

MS. SPUMIES: Does anyone have any questions of t h i s 

witness? I f not the witness may be excused. 

(Witness excused) 

R. S. CHRISTIE, 

j having bear: f i r s t duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d as follows: 

I DIRECT EXAMINATION 
i 
I 3 y KELLOUGH; 

Q Would you please state your name to the Commission? 
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A l i , S. Christie e 

Q Where do you live? 

A Tulsa, Oklahoma. 

Q By whom employed? j 
j 

A Amerada Petroleum Corporation. 

Q In what capacity? 

A Petroleum Engineer. ! 

Q You have previously t e s t i f i e d before t h i s Commission i n ! 

your capacity as a petroleum engineer or expert witness? j 

A Yes, s i r , 
I 

MR. KELLOUGH: Are the qualifications of t h i s witness accept-** 

able? i 

ME, SPURRIER: They are. 

Q what i s the average gas-oil r a t i o for a l l wells i n the 

Bagley-uevonian Pool, Mr. Christie? 

A Average gas-oil r a t i o for a l l wells i n tha Devonian, 

Bagley-Devonian i s 30 cu. f t . per barrel of o i l . 

Q What i s the gravity of the oil? 
A The gravity of the o i l i s approximately 44 to 46 degrees 

i 
API. 

Q I hand you what has been marked as Exhibit No. 16 and j 

ask that you please state what that exhibit is? I 

A Exhibit 16 i s a graph showing the monthly water production!, 
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the t o t a l number of wells completed, tbe cumulative production, 

tb© aontsay © u production and tbe bottom bole pressure history 

of the Bagley-Silnro-Pevonian Fool, 

% w i l l you b r i e f l y suaaarize for the Coaaission what Infor­

mation is shown on that exhibit? 

Th© data —• 

k (Interrupting} In other %ord®, — go ahead* 

A The data indicates norisal development for an o i l pool 

with the monthly production continuing to increase as new wells 

are brought i n . You w i l l note about May of 1951 the allowable 

was increased i n the pool which showed sabstentlal increase In 

the aonttly o i l production* &.% that time th® feotteat hole pre as­

sures in the reservoir decreased at an accelerated rate over and 

above the previous pressure history. 

0, Would you please show that to the Coaaissioaers as you 

testify? You can stand around %'here you can see I t . 

A I have another copy. 

Q, You were referring to the accelerated production and the 

drop in pressure during what month In 1951? 

A In Apri l or May of 1951* 

' I What happened to the pressures after that tine? 

A f e l l after the reservoir reached a ,aore or less static 

condition a<gain after increasing the allowable, the pressures 
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leveled o f f again and remained more or less uniform without any-

appreciable drop u n t i l the last survey which has just been 

completed. I would l i k e to point out that there was an error 

i n one well i n the last survey and the red line shows that 

correction so that the average pressure as of th© f i r s t of Ap r i l 

i s 4213 pounds per square inch or 8 pounds above the pressure 

taken six months previous. 

Q Then i n the last six months there has actually been an 

increase i n pressure at Bagley? 

A Yes, s i r , average increase. 

Q What was the original reservoir bottom hole pressure as 

shown i n that exhibit? 

A The original was approximately 42^5. 

Q I mean the f i r s t pressure that you have shown on that 

exhibit? 

A Approximately 426*5. 

Q And what did you say the present pressure shown on that 

exhibit was? 

A 4213. 

Q How many barrels of o i l have been produced during that 

interval? 

A From the beginning of production u n t i l A p r i l 1st the 

t o t a l production has been 2,573,171 barrels. 
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Q What has been the drop i n pressure,total? 

A I w i l l correct that o r i g i n a l bottom hole pressure that 

I attempted to read. I t was actually 4273 pounds which shows a 

t o t a l pressure drop from the beginning to Apri l l s t , 1952 of B7 

pounds. 

Q There has been during the last six months an increase 

i n pressure? 

A Tes, s i r . 

Q Does the pressure and production information which you 

have depicted on Exhibit No. 16 indicate anything to you with 

reference to the type of energy found at Bagley? 

A In my opinion we de f i n i t e l y have a very active water 

drive and the pressure history and also the productivity index 

tests together with our production tests, completion production 

tests indicate the reservoir of reasonably good permeability, 

MR. KELLOUGH: we offer into evidence Exhibit No. 16. 

MR. SPURRIER: Without objection they are received. 

Q From your production experience, have the wells at Bagley 

had a high and reasonably uniform capacity to produce, would you 
i 

say that from your experience as a petroleum engineer? 1 

A Yes, I think they have. 

Q Wi l l you b r i e f l y state to the Commission for their i n f e r - j 
i 

mat ion the situation that exists under the present 40-acre spacing| 
ADA D E A R N L E Y & A S S O C I A T E S 

C O U R T REPORTERS 

ROOM 12 , C R O M W E L L B L D G . 
P H O N E S 7 - 9 6 4 5 A N D 5 - 9 5 4 6 
A L B U Q U E R Q U E , N E W M E X I C O , 



j order „iierfi wells ar© permitted to be d r i l l e d 330 feet froa tbe 

boundary li n e of tbe section and also coapare that with the 

situation which exists with reference to the application f o r 

j th© extension of 80-acre spacing as i t pertains to and relates 

; to tha drainage area of one well? 
i 

| A Under the present rales of the Oil Conservation Co.aaiss-

! ion, wells may be d r i l l e d 330 feet from the boundary lines of 

j the 40-acre t r a c t , This would authorise the d r i l l i n g of wells ! 
: j 

froa 330 feet from the lines froa each corner of a quarter j 

section and would result in a distance of 1980 feet between 

; wells. Such locations are permitted under the statewide rule j 

of the Oil Conservation Coaalseion and i s oomaonly referred to j 

as 40-acre spacing, resuming that tho statewide 40-acre 

spacing rule preauaea e f f i c i e n t drainage of any reservoir 

spaced under the authority of that r u l e , that is a distance of 

1980 feet, the result i s that the present rule recognizes that 

e f f i c i e n t drainage does occur for a distance of over 990 feet 

from a well, or over an area equivalent to 90 acres. SO-aore 

! spacing aa requested by a&erada Petroleum Corporation for the 

j B&gley-filluro-Devonian pool, Is on a uniform spacing pattern which 

would result i n a distance of 1866 feet between wells or tne e f f 1 -

! cienfc drainage of an area of 80 acres la a form of a square, fhej 

| BG acre spacing proposal would require each well to drain froa a ' 

! distance of only 933 feet, which is 57 feet less than 1© permitted 
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under statewide so-called 40-acre spacing. There are raany pools 

In lew Mexico in •which many wells have been d r i l l e d in the cor­

ner of 40-acre tracts instead of the center, t h i s i s author­

ized under the statewide order coaaonly referred to as 40-acre 

| spacing. Many ef these wells , which, as authorised, are pre-
i 

I sumed to drain an area of 90 acres are producing froa reser-

; voir® that are not under an effective water drive and do not have 

j other conditions which are conducive to a large drainage area 

| as exists in the Bagley-Siluro-Devonian Pool. j 

! K, V»hat has been the average well cost of th© Aaerada pro- j 
I ' j 

d.using completed wells at Bagley? 

A llie average cost of a l l the Aaerada Devonian producing 

; wells at Bagley has been approximately #220,000 per well. 

o Mr. Christie, i n your opinion w i l l one well i n the Bagley-

I Siluro-IVevonian pool effectively, and e f f i c i e n t l y and economically 

drain an area of 80-aeresf 

A In w opinion i t w i l l , 

Q, What, in your opinion, should the allowable be I f the 

application for the extension is granted? 

A Under the present allowable of l j times the normal unit 

| allowable there does not appear to be any waste oesuriag aad I 

; would recu^iend the same allowable be continued. ; 

j % You recommend the sail© allowable as contained i n Order | 

! H-69? j 
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A Yes, s i r . 

Q In your opinion i s there any waste how being committed 

at Bagley or any inequity existing toward any operators or 

royalty owners? 

A No, I don't believe there i s . 

Q Is the shortage of steel s t i l l c r i t i c a l ? 

A As far as our Company i s concerned, i t i s as c r i t i c a l as 

i t was a year ago. 

Q The conditions i n that respect have not changed mater­

ia l l y ? 

A Mo, s i r . 

Q What i s the amount of steel for the average well of a l l 

wells d r i l l e d by Amerada during the past year? 

A Approximately 75 tons per well. 

Q Approximately how many tens of steel does i t take to 

d r i l l one well at the Bagley? 

A Approximately 175 tons to 180 tons. 

Q And i t requires about 2\ times more tonnage of steel t o 

d r i l l a well at Bagley than i t has the average well d r i l l e d by 

Amerada during the last year? 

A That i s correct, yes, s i r . I think another thing 

might be pointed out here i n connection with the shortage of stee 

I t seems to me that i t would be well to t r y and distribute that 
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as well ie ws oouW over not only this Stat© but other States ss 

well , in order to Increase our reserves. In that connection 

I would l i k e to read Into the record, i f I may, a statement by 

General Thompson at Sortn ^exas Oil and Gaa association Meeting 

in Wichita f a l l s several weeks ago. 

MR. SPURHIBK; Very well. 

A The General states, *by the year 1975 the United States 

w i l l re aire 12 to H mill i o n barrels of o i l per day." the 
i 

feme Ccaasriiss loser said, "which is about double our present o i l I 
I 

requirements. 'today we ar© producing 6,l65,lW barrels per day. { 
i 

We have now in addition about 500,000 barrels daily reserve pro- | 
i 

duo lap, a b i l i t y for domestic v/ells.* 

That Is not very auch reaerve - half a million barrels. 

This is at a rate that wo c a l l aost e f f i c i e n t , tha rate that w i l l 

most f u l l y u t i l i z e the reservoir energy and do no harm to wells. j 

In 1951 we f u l l y mmt th© greatest deaand In history and 

added to oar reserves acre than any year before. I think i t ie 

well to keep that in mind and try to, Instead of d r i l l i n g un­

necessary wells .md pools where we have discovered I t be better 

to spread i t around and try to discover soae new reserves. 

v. You aeah, Mr. Christie, that the steel aad materials 

which can be saved at Bagley could be used for further develop- ! 

sent In other areas in New Mexico? ' I 
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A In New Mexico, primarily i n any state as a matter of 

fact. 

Q Amerada i s the larger operator i n New Mexico? 

A Yes, s i r . 
i 

! Q 4e have other interests and other leases In the State of 

1 Mew Mexico i n which we are v i t a l l y interested? 

A We do. 
i 

Q And Amerada contemplates as much exploratory and develop-

:ment work i n New Mexico as i t possibly can, as can be justified? 

Is that right? 

A That i s correct. \ 

Q W i l l the saving of the materials which would otherwise be \ 

wasted i n unnecessary wells, could that be employed i n the 

further development and carrying out of the Ameradaf s exploratory \ 

program i n the State of Mew Mexico? 

A I t could and I am sure i t w i l l be. 

Q In your opinion has there been any change i n condition 

during the past year which you would say, as a petroleum engineer,; 

;should j u s t i f y or require a denial of the application for the 

'extension? I 
j 1 
j A Will you state that again, please? j 
| Q Has there been any changed condition, i n your opinion, 
I 
i 
j which you think should prevent the application for extension 
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from being granted? 

A No, I believe not. 

Q Has Amerada had under consideration the question of 

• whether or not pressure maintenance or secondary recovery opera-

| tions are advisable or feasible or necessary at Bagley? 

I A Yes, s i r , we have considered i t at t h i s time, with the 

j minor drop i n bottom hole pressure we doubt whether i t would be 
j 

i feasible or necessary at t h i s time. I t may be later on that i t 

: would be advisable to do that but at the present time i t doesn't | 

seem to be advisable. 

Q In the event at any future time should i t become, indicate 

that i t would become necessary, i t would be considered by Amerada \ 

would i t not? 

A Yes, s i r , i t would. 

Q But at the time, i n your opinion, i n view of the pressure 

j and production history i t i s not necessary, i s that right or 

feasible? 

A That i s correct. Yes. 

Q Mr. Christie, you are familiar with the work of the 

Committee of Inter-State Oil Compact Commission i n your studies 

on well spacing? j 

A Yes, s i r , I am. To a certain extent. 

Q Are there certain conclusions expressed which conform to j 
! 

_ i 
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your views i?hich are pertinent te this particular matter? I f 

ae, would you read those stateaects to the Oo&aission? 

A I think there are two or three short statements In here 

that agree with ay conclusions i f 1 can find thea readily. 

1 aa now quoting from the well spacing report published and 

! distributed by the Interstate Compact Co«aalssion of which the 

; State of Pi-ew Mexico is ss member* j 

"With respect to eomplete water drive f i e l d s Musteat-^quafler, 

I states and refers to the page In this report or at least la his j 

I report, **In complete water drive f i e l d s the well density should j 

! be only so great as w i l l provide the allowed f i e l d withdrawals. \ 

\ The l a t t e r , i f feasible should be Halted to the capacity of the j 

acre to- replace the withdrawals without continued and excessive 

pressure declines." I think that f i t s the Bagley-Devonian f i e l d 

j very wel l . 

Pag® 53» Paragraph 4* "In water drive reservoirs the 

energ;/ available for removing o i l froa remote locations i n a 

j reservoir Is Halted or inherently qualified primarily by tia©, 

I The efficiency with which this energy may be expended la dependent 

| upon th® type of porosity, percentage of porosity and permeability 

and structural r e l a t i v i t y and conformations but not on well 
i i 

j spacing." j 

j The report in susKaarlsing has several suggestions for close j 

| spacing and several for wide spacing. 1 would l i k e to quote one j 
I I 
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or two u£G**r the wider spacing pattern which they suggest* 

From Page 55 bottom, number 1. "w'aen reservoirs have con­

siderable structural r e l a t i v i t y and high porosity and effective 

permeability resulting In high productivity indices, whiob i n 

turn peralt high individual well allowables with low producing 

bottom hole pressure draw down,* That Is one condition where 

they reeosuaend wide spacing. 

Another Is number 4 f page 56. "When deep well pays result 

i n high d r i l l i n g and high operating costs per well, requiring a 

greater return per well to Insure reasonable return on investment.j* 

n%hen deep well pays indicate low ultimate reservoir re­

covery, and close d r i l l i n g is not economically j u s t i f i a b l e . 1 * 

I believe that is a l l . i 

Q Mr. Christie, Aiaerada i s interested in producing oil ? 

,i Yes, s i r . I 

o They don't want to leave i t i n the ground any more than 

anybody else? 

A Tiiixt i s true. 

K Have you read the prepared statement which has been pre- . 

pared for this Bagley case? 

A Yes, I have. 

•* Are the statements of facts which is contained taerein 

true and correct to the best of your knowledge and information 

and belief? 

A Yes, s i r . j 

KEI.LCUQE: That is a l l fro® this witness. 
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MR. SPURHIER: Does anyone have a question of t h i s witness? 

MR. ADAIR: I have a few questions, please. 

CROSS E1AMIMATX0M 

By. MS. ADAIRi 

Q You have been t e s t i f y i n g solely thus far about the 

Bagley-Siiuro-Devonian reservoir have you not? 

A les, s i r . 

Q As an engineer i n determining whether or not waste w i l l 

take place, i n determining whether or not a reservoir w i l l 

support 80-acre spacing, or making any other determinations with 

reference to that reservoir, you should be confined of course 

to the facts relating to that reservoir, should you not? 

A That i s correct. 

Q Wi l l you refer back, i f you w i l l please, to the pressure 

that you found i n A p r i l , 1951 when the, just prior to the time 

that the 80-acre allowable was placed into effect i n t h i s pool? 

A My records show that the pressure on Ap r i l 1, 1951, the 

average pressure per f i e l d was 4,25S pounds. 

Q What i s the present pressure? 

A Present pressure as of Apri l 1, 1952 i s 4,213 pounds. 

Q Which i s a drop of only approximately what? 

A 45 pounds. 

Q And during that period of time do you have the figures 
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on how much o i l has been withdrawn from the reservoir? 

A To April 1, 1951 the cumulative production was 951,127 

barrels. 

Q So that during the year prior from A p r i l , 1951 u n t i l 

A p r i l , 1951 with a drop of only 45 pounds, you produced i n 

excess of 1,700,000 barrels of oil? 

A That i s correct. 1,722,000. 

Q As an engineer do you not consider t h i s a reservoir of 

unusual quality? 

A I think i t shows very good performance. 

Q During the past six months your pressure decline has not 

only been arrested but you have had an increase i n pressure, have 

you not? 

A Yes, s i r . 

Q So from the standpoint of pressure maintenance and opera­

tions the f e a s i b i l i t y of i n s t i t u t i n g pressure maintenance opera­

tions, that i s not necessary. Nature i s maintaining pressure i n 

t h i s reservoir? 

A That i s correct. 

Q How many rigs does Amerada have running i n the f i e l d at 

the present time? 

A I believe we are d r i l l i n g just one well to the Devonian. 

Q But also you are d r i l l i n g one well to the Pennsylvanian, 
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are ycu not? 

A Yes, s i r . 

Q Most of the Devonian reservoir i s overlaid with the 

Pennsylvanian productive formation, isn't i t ? 

A That i s correct. 
i 

Q Sc that the operators In t h i s particular f i e l d are i n 
> i 
i • i 

j fact d r i l l i n g one well to 40 surface acres at the present time, j 
l i 

j are they not? j 
• i 

A Yes, s i r . j 

Q By d r i l l i n g one well to the Devonian and one well to the j 

j Pennsylvanian? 

A That i s correct, substantially correct. | 

Q Do you know whether or not i t i s true that Texas Pacific ! 

: has two rigs running i n the f i e l d at the present time? 

A I do not know. I understood they had one going to the 

Devonian and one to the Pennsylvanian. 

Q That i s correct. So that from June 1949 when the original 

I well was d r i l l e d up u n t i l the present time, a period of almost 

three years, would you or would ycu not say that the operators 
j 

i in that field have diligently developed the field? j 

| A I would say they had, yes, sir. \ 

Q They have maintained rigs running i n the f i e l d at a l l 

j times, have they not? 
i_ _ _ _ 
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j A That i s correct. I think they probably kept them as 

busy as they would be able to get pipe for them. 

Q So that from the standpoint of correlative rights and 

I standpoint of the producers and the royalty owners getting t h e i r 
j 
I f a i r share of the state allowable o i l production they w i l l get 
i 

j more o i l during the coming year on the 80-acre spacing program 

I that has been i n effect and which i s here requested to be con­

tinued for one year, they w i l l get more o i l that way than i f 

; they go to 40-acres at the present time, as far as spacing i s j 
; i 

concerned, w i l l they not? j 
j 

A In considering reservoirs? I 

Q Yes. ' | 

A Well, — I 

Q (Interrupting) The reason for that of course being that ; 

they w i l l get an allowable and a half for the 80-acre spacing 

even i f they went to 40-acre spacing during the year i n question,! 

they could not d r i l l i n 40-acre spacing, isn't that true? 

A That i s true, yes, s i r . I t would take them some time 

to make up that half an allowable i f they went to 40-acres. 
i 

Q I t would take some three to four months to d r i l l a well? | 
i 

A Yes, s i r . 
Q In that f i e l d . I f you have trouble i t takes sometimes 

! 

6 to 8 months to complete i t , doesn't i t ? | 
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A That Is correct. 

MR. ADAIE; I believa that i s a l l I have. 

KH. SPURRIER: Anyone elsa have a question? 

3y m . WHIT3: 

Q As to the bottom hole pressures referred t o i n Exhibit 

16, how many wells were these bottom hole pressures taken? 

A Generally speaking they were taken i n a l l wells that they 

could gat i n conveniently. In most cases I would say 90 to 95 

percent of them. 

Q Wore individual bottom hole pressures of each well uni­

form or was there a large variance? 

A In my opinion they are rather uniform. We had — 

Q (Interrupting) Tou have the figures as to the greatest 

variance between the wells? 

A a'e had one edge well that had a lower pressure than the 

other wells. 

Q What was that? 

A Examination of that well, Amerada State BTD No. 3, showed a 

bottom hole pressure of 3993. 

2 a/hen was that bottom hole pressure taken? 

A That was taken as of April 1, 1952. 

Q What was the bottom hole pressure prior to that time? 

A Of that particular well? 
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Q Yes, s i r . 

A Ion ars speaking of the individual well? 

Q Yes, s i r . 

A That particular well shewed a decline of 179 pounds over 

a six rconth period.-

Q Is that the last six months? 

A The last six months. That i s an edge well incidentally. 

With ths exception of that one particular well the other wells 

varied from 4178 pounds to 4245 pounds. 

Q Does that exhibit show the individual pressure, bottom 

hole pressure? 

A Exhibit 16 does not. 

Q Just the average? 

Just the average. 

Q Have the exterior l i m i t s of the pool been reasonably 

determined? 

A Yes, s i r , I think they have, 
you 

Q Did/ say that there i s any pos s i b i l i t y or likelihood of the 

wells coning on an 80-acre spacing or not? 

A No, I don't believe they w i l l under 1| times the normal unit 

allowable. 

Q To what do you attribute the pressure increase about the 

same time as an increase i n production? 
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A well, at no time i n the history of the f i e l d have we had 

any material increase i n the bottom hole pressure with increase 

i n production. With the exception of that period that was 

pointed out earlier, between March 1951 and October 1951 where 

the allowable was substantially increased and the bottom hole 

pressure decreased, the reservoir has been under a rather static 

condition. 

Q Could you furnish us the actual bottom hole pressures per 

well? 
I 

A Yes, s i r . 
i 

Mit. WHITE: That i s a l l I have. | 

. MR. SPURRIER: Anyone else? j 

MR. ADAIR: One more question. 

By MR. ADAIR: 

Q Mr. Christie, even though the area l i m i t s of the f i e l d 

have been f a i r l y well delineated i t i s true i s i t not that the 

f i e l d has as yet not been developed to one well to 80-acres? 

A That i s correct, yes, s i r . There i s a poss i b i l i t y of 

other locations or other wells but from our contouring I believe 

we have pretty well established the l i m i t s of the f i e l d . j 

Q But those wells with one exception, but those wells that I 
i 

have been d r i l l e d i n the f i e l d have been d r i l l e d on pattern and 
i 

there has been only one exception asked for and granted so far j 
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aa productive walls are concerned, is that not true? 

4 I believe that is correct, 

Q Se. following jwr idea that each field should stand on 

ita own merits insofar aa reservoir Information ia concerned and 

insofar as spacing and any orders that ths Conaia sion aay issue 

with respect to the firel, thia ia one fiald that ia not, where tha 

COBHttissions problem ia aat complicated by reason of a large number 

of exceptions either granted or requested. 

4 That is corract* ves# air* 

ME. ADAIR: That is all* 

ME. SPOKEIESi Anyone else? 

ByKHJ1_MACEI: 

Q fir. Ghriatis* on y@ur bottom hols pressure carve. 

Exhibit 16, what was the shutin tiae of tha bottom hale pres­

sures? 

A k& hours. 

Q Iu avaa^ case they wera 4$ huurat 

A Well, sssaatially h$ hours* It a«y have been a few 

minutes mm way or another. 

Q In your survey that was taken la October, 1951, accordingj 

to tha sheet hsra, you show a total of — were a l l tha valla ! 

tate aa that survey, or almost a l l of tha*? 

k Aliaoat all of thaa* 

Q Tha ettrv* that you show as a mmhar ©f walla, that is 

i 
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the number of producing wells? 

A Yes, s i r , that i s the number of producing wells. 

Q You are going to submit complete bottom hole pressure 

information? 

A Yes, s i r , I would be glad to do that. 

Q (By MR. WHITS) Was that report from which you read of 

the Interstate Oil Compact, was that report based on the Bagley-

Siluro-Devonian Pool? 

A Well, I am not sure what f i e l d s are included i n the 

analysis of t h i s report but I'm sure they have donsidered 

a large number of f i e l d s , both water drive and solution gas drive 

f i e l d s . 

MR. WHITS: That i s a l l . 

MR. SPURRIER: Anyone else? 

MR. KELLOUGH: Mr. Christie, do you have with you at t h i s 

time a tabulation of the bottom hole pressures prepared i n the 

form requested by Mr. Macey and Mr. White that you could offer 

into avidance at t h i s time? Or would i t be helpful to the 

Commission to prepare especially a tabulation as to each well? 

A I can do i t either way. Which ever they prefer. I could 

read these into the record individually right now i f you would 

l i k e to have them. 

MR. SPURRIER: How many are there? 
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A 16, 

j MR. SPURRIER: Go ahead. 

A These are a l l static pressures taken at a datura of minus 

6700 feet, shut i n time approximately 48 hours. I w i l l read f i r s t 

j a l l Amerada wells. 

j Amerada State BTA No. 1, 4224 pounds also give change plus 

I 4 over the last period. 

BTC No. 1, 4234 plus 8 pounds. 

State BTC No. 3, 4245 pounds plus 34 pounds. 

State BTD No. 1, 4205, plus 41 pounds. 

State BTD So. 3, 3996 pounds, decrease 179 pounds. 

State BTl No. 1, 4236 pounds, plus 14 pounds. 

State BTL No. 1, 4206 pounds, plus 46 pounds. 

Caudle No. 2, 4161, plus 15 pounds. 

Caudle Ho. 5, 4222 which i s tha i n i t i a l pressure. 

I might int e r j e c t here i n passing, that the Caudle Mo. 5, 

which i s the last well completed, had a pressure approximately 

the same as other wells i n the f i e l d which to me shows very good 

| drainage. 

Mathers No. 1, 4187 pounds, plus 9 pounds. 
i 

j Mathers MA" No. 1, 4178, minus 20 pounds. 

; Mathers "A" 2, 4213, which was i n i t i a l pressure. 

That again i s ; reflects a very good drainage, I believe i t 
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happens to be the average for a l l the pressures. 

Now, going to the Texas Pacific Coal and Oil Company well 

tests; their State B No. 1, 4240 pounds, minus 18 pounds. 

State C No. 1, 4205, minus 23 pounds. 

State C Ho. 2, 4200, minus 37 pounds. 

State C No. 3, 4212, minus 18. 

Q {By MR. KELLOUGH;) The second figure that you gave i n 

each case, minus or plus, referred to either the drop or the rise 

i n pressures as between what dates? 

A Between October 1, 1951 and April 1, 1952, six months \ 
I 

period. j 

Q I wish to say to the Commission at t h i s time, i f there 

i s further pressure information i n any form which you desire, 

we would be glad to prepare and furnish the Commission with 

anything further they wish i n that connection. 

By MR. MACEY; 

Q >/ould i t be possible, Mr. Christie for you to furnish us 
i 

with a complete pressure history i n tabular form? 

A Hot only possible, but we w i l l do i t . j 

Q One thing I wanted to ask you, Mr. Christie, i n Section 

j 3, the SS of the NE the So. 1 Mathers, what was the pressure on j 
i j 

that well? ! 

A 4187. I 
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Q What was the pressure on the Ho. 5 Caudle i n the 40-acre 

unit to the North? 

A 4222. 

MH. MACEY: A l l r i g h t . 

MR. SPURRIER: Any other questions? I f not the witness may 

be excused. Let's take a fi v e minute bri e f recess. 

(Recess) 

MR. SPURRIER: Mr. Campbell, did you make a comment just as 

we recessed for the record? 

Mil. CAMPBELL: No, s i r . I started to make a statement but 

he said there was going to be more testimony. 

MR. KELLOUGH: I have one more question I would l i k e to ask 

t h i s witness. W i l l you please very b r i e f l y explain your opinion 

as to why the pressure has been maintained i n Bagley i n the 

manner i n which i t has? 

A The pressure i n the Sagley-Siluro-Devonian Pool has 

remained more or less static or s l i g h t l y below the original 

bottom hole pressure because of the rate of withdrawals which 

have been approximately the same or at times a l i t t l e less than 

the rate of influx of water from the surrounding aquafier. The 

explanation for the increase over th© past six months i s due to 

the rather accentuated decrease for the six months previous. 

Apparently what happened there, as soon as the pressure dropped 
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and by rea&on of the larger withdrawals and the reservoir became 

static again after the water in f l u x caught up with the with­

drawals, then the pressures started building up again. I t i s a 

good b i t similar to hydraulic system or pipe line where you have 

| pressure at one end and a valve at the other. As soon as you 

| opan the valve you get a slight drop and i f you continue to 

maintain the pressure at the other end the decrease i n pressure 

| w i l l f i n a l l y be caught up with the pressure i n the back. The 

same thing i s more or less true with an Artesian well. I f you 

open a valve on an Artesian well you a l l know i t w i l l flow with-
a r t i f i c i a l 

• out any a d d i t i o n a l / l i f t , i t i s caused by the head of water 

:behind i t . 

This reservoir i s under a hydraulic system and has a large 

;body of water following the o i l i n , and any time you change those 

conditions why you change the conditions i n the reservoir and i t 

takes some time for the momentum to catch up to the withdrawals. 

Mil. KELLOUGH: That i s a l l the testimony we have to offer 

except that I wish to now — 

A (Interrupting) I might point out also that when you are 

I talking about 8 pounds increase or decrease, you are talking 

I about a very small percentage and i t i s very conceivable to have 

jhave that much of an error i n your instruments. Where your 

(decline or increase i s of minor value i t i s questionable some-
j _ - _ 

ADA DEARNLEY & ASSOCIATES 
C O U R T REPORTERS 

ROOM ! 2 , C R O M W E L L B L D G . 
P H O N E S 7 - 9 6 4 5 A N D 5 - 9 B 4 6 
A L B U Q U E R Q U E . N E W M E X I C O 

38 



times as to whether i t i s the exact figure or not. $ pounds i n 

j 4200 would only be two tenths of one percent or i n that neighbor-

j hood. But the fact that the increases were more or less 
| 
j consistent would lead us to believe that we actually had a slight 
i 

' increase on t h i s last survey. 

Q (By MS. KELLOUGH} That increase would not indicate that 

j there weren't enough wells d r i l l e d out there would i t ? 

A No, s i r . 

MR. KELLOUGH: I would l i k e to offer Into evidence the 

; statements of fact which are contained i n the written statement 

and the argument as submitted i n memorandum bri e f . 

MR. SPURRIER: Without objection they w i l l be received. 
i 

Does anyone have a question of t h i s witness? I f not the witness : 

j may be excused. 

{Witness excused.) 

MR. SPURRIER: Any one else to appear i n t h i s case? 

MR. ADAIR: I f the Commission please, purely for the purpose 

| of supplementing the testimony given by Amerada, and incidentally 

l e t us say that we have a l l of the information that they put on, 

| we have worked up on our own behalf to put before the Commission \ 

i f i t were needed. However, we believe that Amerada has made a 

very complete presentation. We have only some information with \ 
i 

respect to our own wells that we would l i k e to l e t the Commission) 
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I examine i n order to determine whether or not we actually as we 

think we have a reservoir of very high quality. We w i l l ask 
i 

Mr. Peck Hardy to be sworn. 

PSCK HARDY, 
i 
j 

| having been f i r s t duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d as follows: 

| DIRECT SSAMIHATIOIf 

! ̂  !!• ADAIR: 
Q Will you state your name to the Commission? I 

; j 

A Peck Hardy, Jr. j 
; j 

Q itfhere do you reside? 

A Midland. 

Q By whom employed? 

A Texas Pacific Coal and Oil Company. 

Q What capacity? 

A Division Engineer. 

Q Where were you educated? 

A Graduate of Texas A & M College. 

Q Do you hold a BS Degree i n Petroleum Engineering from 

that School? 

A Yes, s i r . j 

Q How long have you been employed by Texas Pacific Coal and! 
; 1 
; i 

I Oil Company? I 

A A l i t t l e over four years. j 
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MR. ADAIR: Are his qualifications as an expert acceptable? 

MR. SPURRIER: They are. 

| Q Have you prepared, Mr. Hardy, or has there been prepared 

j under your supervision a tabulation of certain productivity 

j index tests run by Texas Pacific Coal and Oil Company on i t s 

j wells i n the Bagley-Jevonian field? 

A Yes, s i r . 

Q Is that the tabulation? 

A les, s i r . 

1 MR, ADAIR: We offer that as Texas Pacific Coal and Oil 
i 

Company Exhibit No. 1. 

MR. SPURRIER: Without objection i t w i l l be received. 

Q Wi l l you b r i e f l y t e l l the Commission exactly what the 

; tabulation shows and particularly with respect to producing 

• rates at which the wells were tested and the PI*s which 

; you got as a result of those tests? 

A Productive index shows the capacity of your wells to 

I produce. 

Q What was the PI on State BI well? 

A 16.56. 

Q On State Cl what was the.PI? 

A 40.96. 

Q At what rate of production per 24 hours? 
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A 1,556.6 barrels. 

Q State 02 PI? 

A 26.2. 

Q Rate of production? 

A 1,596 barrels per day. 

Q State C3 PI? 

A 6.54. " 

Q Rate of production? 

A 1,026.7. 

Q Do you consider those Pi's very good or average? 

A Very good. 

Q Unusual i n West Texas, Eastern New Mexico area? 

A Yes, s i r , I think they are. 

Q I hand you a graph and ask you what that shows? 
the 

A This i s a graph of the tabular data of / PI's taken on 

Texas Pacific Coal and Oil Company wells. 

Q I t shows the same wells that are shown on the tabulation? 

A Yes, s i r . 

Q Only shows Pi's graphically, i s that correct? 

A That i s true. 

MR. ADAIR; We offer that as Texas Pacific Exhibit No. 2. 

MR. SPURRIER; Without objection i t w i l l be received. 

MR. ADAIR: I f the Commission please, Mr. Hardy has prepared 
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or had prepared under his supervision a tabulation of the a r i t h ­

metic average bottom hole pressures surveys as we have recorded 

them. They show a slight difference from the tabulation of the 

! surveys made by the Amerada but the result i s the same. They 

! show an increase i n the last six months of 33 pounds instead of 

I 8>pounds but we used the Engineering Qoa»ittees Beport for 
the 

October *51 survey rather than /figure used by Mr. Christie for 

Amerada purely for whatever help i t w i l l be to the Commission. 

\ We offer that i n evidence as Texas Pacific's Exhibit No. 3. 

MR. SPURRIER: Without objection i t w i l l be received. 

MR. ADAIR: That i s a l l I have, Mr. Spurrier. 

MR. SPURRIER: Anyone have a question of t h i s witness? I f 

not the witness may be excused. 

(Witness excused.) 

MR. SPURRIER: Any more testimony i n t h i s case? 

MR, ADAIR: That i s a l l as far as Texas Pacific i s concerned. 

MR. SPURRIER: Any comments? '*\ 

MR. CAMPBELL: I would l i k e to make a statement on behalf 

of Texas Pacific Coal and Oil Company. Jack M. Campbell, Roswell, 
• i 

I New Mexico. I w i l l read t h i s into the record. j 
j j 

I t is-^n opinion of Texas Pacific Coal and Oil Company that j 

j each common source of supply must be considered by the Commission 

independently. As to the nature and use of the reservoir energy 
.... : i 
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the productive capacity of the wells, the spacing of those wells, 

and the protection of correlative rights. The evidence was ob­

tained after three years experience im the d r i l l i n g and production 

of 19 wells im the Eagley-Siluro-Devonian cojanon source of supply* 

Indication was that the reservoir energy i s a strong water drive 

which at the present rata of to approximately mm and a half 

ti n t s the normal unit allowable has so decline to any depreciable 

degree* 

The f i e l d has 19 wells in the Devonian and only one exception 

to the present spacing order. Rights are apparently being f u l l y 

protected* the evidence shows that no waste is taklag place* 

This common source of supply appears to be one which w i l l j u s t i f y 

the extension of the present order to make possible proper 

continued development for this pool. 

MR* BGHDl I would l i k e to make a statement. L. H. 

Bond speaking for Stanolind Oil and Gas Company, 

¥e have no material interest in the properties i n this pool 

ihat we do have extensive d r i l l i n g and pred'aeiftfs operations in 

|Hew Mexico* and feel that the decision that the Comisaion 

renders in this ease slight well effect our operations in the 

state. 

Our data, based, on deep wall d r i l l i n g in Mew Mexico, bears out 

ithat the woll co^ts figures that were emheitted by jtnarada are 

certainly reasonable for wella to this depth. V® fee! that oar 
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' operators w i l l certainly be encouraged to make investments of 

almost a quarter of a mill i o n dollars per well i f they can 

expecton proper showing to be granted reasonable unit sizes, such 

' as 80 acres. Of course, t h i s would be dependent upon showing 
i 

i 

j the wells would drain isO-acres. In our opinion, wells w i l l drain 

j considerably i n excess of that amount where the reservoirs are 
i 

I continuous. In some fi e l d s of low permeability,of course the 
i t 

| time required to drain that area might be excessive, but i n a 

f i e l d such as Bagley where Mr, Hardy has t e s t i f i e d that Pi's 

ranged from 6 to as much as 40, that would not be the case. i 

I t seems to us that the a b i l i t y of wells to drain large areas i s 
j 

being realized to an increasing extent i n the industry. 

I believe Mr. Christie referred to the Interstate Oil 

Compact Commission's Bulletin. I would mention one other recent 

publication. The book "Petroleum Conservation" published in 1951 \ 

by the American Institute of Mining and Metalhargical Engineers. 

In this book, well spacing is discussed for the various types of 

reservoir control and the conclusion of the article on well j 

spacing is that if sufficient wells a r e drilled to permit the \ 

desired producing rate without undue pressure differentials, addi­

tional wells will have little or no effect on ultimate oil \ 
! 

recovery. I 
i 

The indications are that i n most o i l reservoirs developed to | 
i j 
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date the t o t a l number of wells d r i l l e d has substantially exceeded 

the number actually required to obtain e f f i c i e n t o i l recovery. 

The other consideration i s , of course, the conservation of 

materials. I t has been t e s t i f i e d that from 175 to 180 tons of 

steel are required to equip a well i n t h i s f i e l d . I f 80-acre 

development i s maintained as has been requested, t h i s steel 

could be used i n finding new o i l reserves. 

In conclusion, I would l i k e to concur with the recommenda­

tions of Amerada and Texas Pacific that t h i s HO-acre order be 

maintained in effect. Thank you. 

MR. SPURRIER: Anyone else? 

MR. WALKER: Dow Walker, Fort Worth, for Gulf. I have a 

statement hers I w i l l give you i n a minute although I don't feel 

we can add anything to the testimony that has been given, we 

would l i k e to go on record with a statement and say that Gulf 

does have acreage within the productive l i m i t s of the pool and 

consequently are v i t a l l y interested i n the case. 

We have not at t h i s time available detailed information 

regarding the Bagley-Siluro-Devonian reservoir but we too have 

examined the reservoir pressure performance and fi n d that natural 

sources of reservoir energy are maintaining the pressure very 

close to that o r i g i n a l l y existing. We find no j u s t i f i c a t i o n at 

t h i s time for the i n s t i t u t i o n of pressure maintenance or second-
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ary recovery operations i n the f i e l d . 

Gulf does not now have information available which would 

conclusively show whether one well i s capable of draining 80 

acres i n t h i s reservoir. However, there i s certainly no i n d i ­

cation to the contrary at t h i s time, and i t i s respectfully 

recommended that the Commission grant an extension to the present 

order u n t i l there i s sufficient evidence to determine whether or 

not the reservoir Is being adequately drained by 80 acres* 

We would l i k e to concur with recommendations of Texas 
j 

Pacific and Amerada i n t h i s case. 

MR. SPURRIER: Anyone else? 

MR. FOSTER: Foster for P h i l l i p Petroleum Company. We don't; 

have any acreage in t h i s f i e l d under consideration, but many of j 

the facts that have been presented here we are i n sympathy with. 

We are i n favor of 80-acre spacing wherever the reservoir 

conditions permit. We want to go on record as favoring generally! 

80-acre spacing. We think i t i s sound in principle and that 

eventually the Commission here i s going to recognize, more and 

more i n t h i s State, the principles back of 80-acre spacing. 

MR. SPURRIER: Anyone else? I f not the cases w i l l be taken j 

under advisement. The next cases on the docket which are | 

consolidated for the purpose of the hearing, Case 314 and 319. j 
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